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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm sorry for the

          3  delay. Good morning. I am Councilman Leroy Comrie.

          4  I'm Chair of the Consumer Affairs Committee. I'm

          5  joined by my colleague, Peter Vallone, Jr. We also

          6  have in the vicinity Council Member Jim Gennaro,

          7  chairing a hearing that is happening consecutively

          8  with Department of Environmental Protection, and

          9  Council Member Koppell, who is at the Housing and

         10  Buildings Committee, which is also going

         11  concurrently.

         12                 As I said, we are joined by Council

         13  Member Peter Vallone, who is the Chair of the Public

         14  Safety Committee, and the prime sponsor of the bill

         15  that we're going to review today, Intro. 380, a bill

         16  intended to further combat etching acid vandalism in

         17  New York City.

         18                 I would also like to recognize some

         19  of the work that he's done previously on this matter

         20  looking to end the proliferation of graffiti in New

         21  York City. He sponsored two bills that are now local

         22  laws, 124 of 2005 and Local Law 39 of 2007.

         23                 The problem of etching acid vandalism

         24  is most prevalent on the City's mass transit system

         25  where subway windows are frequently damaged at a

                                                            4

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  cost of $130 per window, and an annual cost to the

          3  MTA of $11 million.

          4                 Trains can also be out of service for

          5  over eight hours while replacement windows are

          6  installed, and a number of subway cars going out of

          7  operation for window repair has increased

          8  dramatically in recent years.

          9                 New York City employs several laws in

         10  its efforts to thwart graffiti. For example, the two

         11  local laws that I just mentioned specifically

         12  regulate the possession and transportation of

         13  graffiti instruments by individuals under 21.

         14                 The New York City Police Department

         15  also enforces several important State anti-graffiti

         16  regulations, such as penal laws criminalizing the

         17  possession of graffiti instruments in the act of

         18  producing graffiti.

         19                 Intro. 380 would supplement existing

         20  law by further restricting access to etching acid.

         21  The proposal would require that anyone intending to

         22  obtain etching acid first apply for a license from

         23  DCA. Anyone under 21, or anyone who has been

         24  convicted of any graffiti-related offense would be

         25  ineligible for a license. Any individual who
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          2  purchases etching acid without a license, or anyone

          3  who sells etching acid to an unlicensed person would

          4  be guilty of violating the terms of the proposal.

          5                 We have invited representatives from

          6  the Mayor's Administration, the Metropolitan Transit

          7  Authority, etching acid distributors and various

          8  other interested parties to speak on today's

          9  proposal. We look forward to their comments.

         10                 I would say I wish I heard that

         11  argument that you guys were having earlier. It

         12  seemed to be pretty germane to the subject. But

         13  before we get started, I'd like the author of the

         14  bill to say a few words.

         15                 Council Member Vallone, thank you,

         16  and good morning.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you.

         18  And I would like to thank Chair Comrie, because this

         19  is a bill that I did write, but I've written many

         20  that never see the light of day, and I wanted to

         21  thank Leroy Comrie for taking the valuable time of

         22  this Committee on this bill, and I think that's

         23  because he's been a valuable partner in the fight

         24  against graffiti, as has the Administration. And I

         25  think we can all agree that this is perhaps the
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          2  biggest graffiti problem we face right now when it

          3  comes to etching acid. There are so many, it hurts

          4  the City on so many levels, and let me just read for

          5  a second an article I was just handed by Clyde

          6  Haberman, who probably said it better than I can:

          7                 "We're not talking about the usual

          8  chicken-like scratching in the glass that riders

          9  barely notice anymore. The problem is the large

         10  white billows of undecipherable scribbling. In some

         11  instances they cover entire windows, conjuring up

         12  memories of darker times when a subway ride

         13  sometimes felt like a creepy scene out of Death

         14  Wish."

         15                 I think that pretty much sums up the

         16  feeling people get when they see this scribble on

         17  our windows, store windows, subway windows, but the

         18  concerns go much deeper than that, literally much

         19  deeper than that, because as Public Safety Chair,

         20  etching acid is a very, very dangerous acid,

         21  especially for children to be running around with.

         22  But for anyone, but for anyone. And I'm going to

         23  read it from someone who has experience with etching

         24  acid, who says it's extremely dangerous, odorless,

         25  colorless, can be easily mistaken for water. When it
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          2  comes into contact with human skin, it's absorbed.

          3  You don't feel immediate pain, and you may not even

          4  realize you've come into contact until it proceeds

          5  to attack the calcium and other minerals in your

          6  bones, it can eventually lead to death.

          7                 The treatment usually ends up

          8  consisting of several injections with needles into

          9  the bone structure. So, this is serious business.

         10                 And a Vancouver website posits a

         11  scenario about an emergency responder, this is in

         12  Vancouver City, the official website of Vancouver

         13  City, posits a scenario where an emergency responder

         14  attempts to give first aid to a youth in severe pain

         15  from burns, an object in the victim's pocket burst

         16  open and splashes the acid on the responder's hands,

         17  and he suffers severe burns as a result, which is

         18  clearly not outside the realm of possibility.

         19                 So, you've got the fact that it's

         20  disgusting, you've got the fact that it's dangerous,

         21  there are numerous articles in front of me here

         22  about the millions and millions of dollars it's cost

         23  the City, and the MTA and store owners to replace

         24  the glass because you can't clean it, so you got the

         25  fact that it's expensive, and it also hurts service.
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          2                 There is an article here about the

          3  fact that the trains need to go out of service for

          4  something like eight hours just to fix one window,

          5  and it leads to service disruptions.

          6                 So, we're not talking about markers

          7  and spray paint here, we're talking about a very,

          8  very dangerous acid, which causes a myriad of

          9  problems.

         10                 Now, I have read the testimony and I

         11  have had many discussions with the Administration

         12  and I realize they have some very valid concerns

         13  about this bill, and I think we all realize that

         14  this bill is a first step, and I look forward to

         15  working with the Administration to make some changes

         16  that they suggest. Hopefully we can work together to

         17  come up with a bill which does work.

         18                 No bill that we pass here is going to

         19  be painless, that's for sure. There's going to be

         20  some regulations which exist, which we don't want to

         21  exist but have to in order to get our hands around

         22  this problem. But I look forward to hearing their

         23  testimony and hopefully getting some suggestions on

         24  how to get this bill better, so we can all work

         25  together to combat this serious problem. So, thank
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          2  you, again, Mr. Chair, for having this hearing.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you,

          4  Councilman Vallone, and I want to applaud you for

          5  doing everything you can to close the circle, to

          6  close all the loopholes to try to make it more

          7  difficult for people to engage in graffiti and

          8  continuing to -- your continual efforts to find

          9  every means necessary to ensure that our City can

         10  stay as clean as possible.

         11                 We have, I'm not sure who is

         12  testifying first. We have Andrew Eiler from

         13  Department of Consumer Affairs, Assistant

         14  Commissioner Susan Petito, and Captain Elwood

         15  Selover. I am not sure who is testifying first, but

         16  you have the microphone.

         17                 MR. EILER: Good morning, Chairman

         18  Comrie and Committee members. I'm Andrew Eiler,

         19  Director of Legislative Affairs for the Department

         20  of Consumer Affairs.

         21                 As you just mentioned, I'm joined by

         22  Captain Selover and Sue Petito from the Police

         23  Department.

         24                 Commissioner Mintz asked me to thank

         25  you for the opportunity to appear before you at your
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          2  hearing on Intro. 380, which prohibits the sale of

          3  etching acid to or its possession by anyone not

          4  licensed by the Department of Consumer Affairs.

          5                 This well-intentioned proposal seeks

          6  to rein in a new breed of graffiti vandals who have

          7  switched to etching acids as their new instrument of

          8  choice to deface public and private property.

          9                 Unlike graffiti instruments like

         10  spray paints and markers, which were largely

         11  mastered by power washers and the use of

         12  non-adhering surfaces that made it possible to erase

         13  the graffiti before many could view it, removing as

         14  well the incentives for creating it, the new breed

         15  of graffiti vandals uses etching acid to permanently

         16  damage the surface to which they're applied.

         17                 Such surfaces can be repaired only by

         18  replacing the damaged objects. When their favorite

         19  targets are subway or bus windows, their handy work

         20  produces expensive problems for transit officials.

         21                 While Intro. 380 is intended to

         22  create a barrier to keep the new graffiti

         23  instruments out of the hands of graffiti vandals, we

         24  believe the proposal misses the mark for the

         25  following reasons:

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 First and foremost, requiring anyone

          3  who purchases or possesses etching acid, defined in

          4  Section 10-117(e) as any "liquid, cream, paste or

          5  similar chemical substance that can be used to etch,

          6  draw, carve, sketch, engrave, or otherwise alter,

          7  change or impair the physical integrity of glass or

          8  metal" to be licensed casts a net that not only

          9  catches the graffiti vandals but snares, for no

         10  purpose, untold multitudes who use these substances

         11  only for perfectly legitimate artistic, commercial,

         12  or industrial applications.

         13                 The wide range of applications for

         14  etching acids includes its use in the automotive

         15  industry in the production of brake rotors and fuel

         16  cell plates; the sign and plaque industry for making

         17  business cards, logo name plates, or panel covers;

         18  the jewelry industry and artists or craft persons

         19  for making stencils, woodworking or creating

         20  decorative finishes on metals or glass. Not only is

         21  there a wide range of legitimate applications for

         22  acid etching, there are also numerous outlets where

         23  the chemicals may be purchased, including art

         24  supply, hardware, or paint stores, and any number of

         25  chemical, metal fabrication, and glass suppliers.
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          2                 Second, the bill imposes very costly

          3  requirements on the host of citizens who would be

          4  subjected to its requirements. In addition to filing

          5  licensing applications, all those individuals listed

          6  above would have to submit to a criminal background

          7  check requiring fingerprinting.

          8                 This requirement would compel each

          9  applicant to pay the $75 fee now charged for

         10  conducting this background check. It is difficult to

         11  imagine imposing such a financial burden that will

         12  really affect, that is going to affect so many

         13  people and it's going to result in not having much

         14  of an impact.

         15                 Third, those required to be licensed

         16  would not be easily identifiable, making it

         17  difficult to enforce compliance and impossible to do

         18  so against the graffiti vandals who are intended

         19  targets.

         20                 Licensing is normally used as a way

         21  of testing the qualifications of licensees to guard

         22  the public from incompetent practitioners or to

         23  impose best practices or financial accountability

         24  standards to protect the public from harmful conduct

         25  or financial losses. Those required to be licensed
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          2  are usually easily identifiable and openly engaged

          3  in -- those required to be licensed are usually

          4  easily identifiable and openly engaged in the

          5  activity for which the license is required. That

          6  makes it easy to identify and to distinguish those

          7  required to be licensed, to conduct inspections, and

          8  to enforce compliance.

          9                 The purchase and possession standards

         10  that trigger this licensing requirement are, by

         11  contrast, momentary occurrences that are not easily

         12  observable. It would be especially problematic to

         13  enforce the possession standards at commercial or

         14  manufacturing establishments that use etching acid

         15  for perfectly lawful processes, and where it is

         16  simply on premises and available to any employee who

         17  needs to use it. Who, in such circumstances,

         18  possesses the etching acid for the purpose of a

         19  licensing requirement?

         20                 Since the momentary occurrences that

         21  trigger the licensing requirement makes it virtually

         22  impossible to tell by the mere visual inspection

         23  whether anyone is engaging in unlicensed activity,

         24  the licensing requirement could either be enforced

         25  only by extremely intrusive and costly compliance
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          2  inspection programs, or because of observation of

          3  other unlawful activity which would subject the

          4  offender to penalties.

          5                 Finally, the licensing requirement

          6  would, at best, be a negligible deterrent to

          7  graffiti vandals obtaining and possessing etching

          8  acids. The graffiti vandals could easily circumvent

          9  the law merely by enlisting the assistance of a

         10  friend who is licensed.

         11                 And in that way, actually having the

         12  license makes it seem like the person is complying

         13  with the law when he's carrying it for a friend.

         14                 For these reasons, the Department

         15  does not view Intro. 380 as an effective tool for

         16  curbing the use of etching acid as an instrument for

         17  vandalism. By the same token, the Department is

         18  fully mindful of the costly damage that can be

         19  caused by graffiti vandals using etching acid, and

         20  the importance of curbing those practices. We would,

         21  therefore, be pleased to consider and discuss more

         22  targeted approaches that focus directly on

         23  apprehending the real culprits rather than catching

         24  a host of innocent citizens in he fine mesh of a

         25  broad dragnet.

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 These more targeted approaches could

          3  include imposing tougher criminal penalties on those

          4  caught engaging in graffiti vandalism using etching

          5  acid, or imposing requirements on retailers to

          6  maintain records on customers that could be checked

          7  by the Police Department to assist in criminal

          8  investigation of graffiti crimes.

          9                 Thank you again for this opportunity

         10  to testify. I would be pleased to answer your

         11  questions. We are also joined by colleagues from the

         12  Police Department who are also available to answer

         13  your questions.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Mr.

         15  Chairman, we don't have any prepared testimony.

         16  We're here to answer questions.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         18                 How many arrests have you had from

         19  persons that were caught using etching acid in the

         20  past year?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Mr.

         22  Chairman, we don't keep separate stats depending on

         23  the type of graffiti implement used. We've had, so

         24  far this year we've had over 2,500 arrests for

         25  graffiti crimes. Our sense is that it would be a
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          2  relatively small number of people arrested with

          3  etching acid, as opposed to the other implements,

          4  because it's such a more difficult crime to observe.

          5  Most of the etching acid crime involving subway

          6  trains is used while the train is in motion. It's

          7  really not in the lay-up yard, and Captain Selover

          8  can talk in more detail about it, but our sense is

          9  that the raw numbers of arrests were people in

         10  possession of etching acid would be relatively low.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: So, you don't

         12  have a separate stat for etching acid, and you think

         13  that it's a low percentage of the 2,500, but it is

         14  causing millions of dollars in damage for the MTA.

         15                 So, Captain the people that are using

         16  etching acid, when you do catch them, do they have a

         17  separate bag, or are they carrying it on their

         18  person? Or do you have an idea of how they're

         19  transporting it?

         20                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: Usually in the way,

         21  in my experience, an acid etcher will work is he

         22  will have some sort of liquid vehicle in order to

         23  mix the acid with, usually a liquid shoe polish

         24  applicator. Bingo markers, sometimes they fill a

         25  Sharpee marker with it. Usually it's the liquid shoe
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          2  polish, because that also adds that white color,

          3  that the Councilman referred to that comes up on the

          4  windows. Add a little bit of cream, mix it up. It's

          5  very small, very secrete, very surreptitiously they

          6  can bring it out, the sponge is primed, obviously,

          7  with the mixture and they could do it very quickly,

          8  back in the pocket, without being seen, it's much

          9  easier, it's much smaller, probably the amount of

         10  damage they could do with one of those little

         11  bottles would probably equal many cans of spray

         12  paint, so you could do a lot more damage with a lot

         13  less fluid.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: So, in other

         15  words, it's very hard to spot somebody walking on

         16  the train that's intending on doing damage, but they

         17  can keep it obstensibly hidden from the police

         18  officer.

         19                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: That's correct.

         20  Where spraypaint, obviously you can just have one

         21  can and do damage, but with spray paint you would

         22  have a knapsack or some sort of carrier which would

         23  have several cans, much easier to secrete.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. And

         25  therefore it's a lot more difficult to combat it,
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          2  because you really -- do you find they're doing this

          3  all times of day, or specific times? Are you getting

          4  complaints from the subway riders, or this is

          5  something that happens at night like they used to do

          6  with graffiti primarily?

          7                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: I think they do it

          8  many different times, and we would just be

          9  speculating on my case. The arrests my unit has made

         10  in them is usually after the fact, because we can

         11  recognize the tag, which my unit specializes in, and

         12  then we can find out what the tag is, which is the

         13  name, and track it back to the person through our

         14  investigative tools.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: So, they're using

         16  the same type of styles and tags that they did back

         17  in the -- to identify themselves for the public or

         18  to identify themselves to the technical public?

         19                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: That's correct. Like

         20  if you recall, on trains they had the big bubble

         21  tags; they won't do anything like that. They do the

         22  quick signature tags, which is referred to as a

         23  throw-up. Same you would see with a marker, they

         24  would use it, only using the acid etch. Sometimes it

         25  gets unreadable because it drips.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

          3  Interesting.

          4                 And just to stay in that vain, is

          5  there some type of underground network of people

          6  that are doing this for whatever sick reason that

          7  may be coming up?

          8                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: It depends on the

          9  profile of the individual, obviously there is a

         10  tremendous graffiti subculture throughout this

         11  country, the City and the world. Many, many

         12  websites, and they host parties and all that.

         13  Obviously it's on TV, you could see it in the

         14  background of any kid's show. I mean, it's just, you

         15  know, obviously.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.

         17                 Is there an underground acid etching

         18  group that's running around doing UTUBE or has an

         19  underground network that the PD is aware of?

         20                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: Not outside, as far

         21  as I know, like the regular graffiti subculture.

         22  There isn't like a separate off-shoot that I'm aware

         23  of that just dabbles in acid etch.

         24                 As a matter of fact, some of the

         25  bigger arrests we've had, there was one, he was
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          2  actually in the New York Times, his tag was "Smash,"

          3  and that's what kind of started us on this thing.

          4                 He's also a spraypainter too, and he

          5  was very proud of the fact that he had gotten

          6  applause through his groups and through websites and

          7  such as being the "King of acid etch," so we were

          8  able to arrest him for many, many windows.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right. Just

         10  one technical question on the bill. I always said

         11  that you felt that the need to license the

         12  businesses that were handling etching acid was a

         13  little too much, and unnecessary, but you did

         14  believe that the idea of having stores that sell the

         15  products doing better database management, writing

         16  down the names and the addresses of the people that

         17  testify -- I mean, sorry, I'm looking at somebody's

         18  new signature -- write the names and the addresses

         19  of the customers that actually purchase it and be

         20  required to maintain a database.  So that would be

         21  you think more effective, or is that practical? They

         22  would have to get ID from people, so that everybody

         23  wouldn't go there and say their name is Andy Eiler.

         24                 MR. EILER: Well, it's just a thought,

         25  some alternative suggestions of the licensing of the
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          2  person buying and possessing is too broad, then how

          3  can you focus in on something that will be

          4  meaningful and usable. And it's sort of like the

          5  basis for a pawn shop, pawn brokers and second-hand

          6  dealers, who are required to keep a register of

          7  people that purchase second-hand goods and sell

          8  second-hand goods of pawn brokers and so forth,

          9  which then the police check, identify people and so

         10  forth. It's along those lines that essentially

         11  that's a way to look at the purchasers, kept by

         12  retailers, a list, and of course you would expect

         13  that they would keep identification or whatever, and

         14  then you could check and see whether the people

         15  buying it have a legitimate use for it and then

         16  focus on the people who don't. Because you should be

         17  able to, from the names and addresses and anything

         18  else, be able to say, well, this guy is an artist,

         19  this guy is this, this guy works in a glass company,

         20  this guy is whatever, but wait a minute, this person

         21  here has no connection with any lawful activity, so

         22  why is he buying etching acid. I mean, that's the

         23  idea, but I'm not sure, we'd have to think about how

         24  to effectively work that one out.

         25                 Just one suggestion that we had, I
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          2  mean we understand the problem, just trying to focus

          3  on it in a way that will work.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. And I

          5  understand your concern about having people have to

          6  pay $75 fees for the background checks for the

          7  filing for licensing applications, but I think there

          8  should be some type of registration of the people

          9  that are actually using the products so at least the

         10  police can have locations to go check, if they

         11  needed to do a backlog. I think that's something

         12  that we could look into.

         13                 I want to turn it over to the

         14  resident expert on graffiti and allow him to ask

         15  some questions about this particular topic, and

         16  thank him, again, for being here this morning.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         18  again, Mr. Chair. And Mr. Eiler, thank you for your

         19  thoughtful testimony.

         20                 Captain Selover, again, let me

         21  commend you for the work you guys are doing every

         22  day with the Vandals Task Force, and it's a pleasure

         23  to work with you.

         24                 Are graffiti arrests up again this

         25  year in total?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: They

          3  are. They're up by about 36 percent. They were over

          4  2,500 in '07 as of the end of August, versus a

          5  little over 1,800 at the same time in'06.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: That's

          7  remarkable. Because as you said, you have a police

          8  force that dwindles through attrition and being able

          9  to replace them, and you guys are doing so much more

         10  with less, so you deserve to be commended.

         11                 Let me just run through the testimony

         12  piece by piece. Actually, before I do, Captain

         13  Selover, you would probably know this better than

         14  anyone else, but when it's applied, when etching

         15  acid is applied, how long does it take to dry? How

         16  long does it maintain a danger, is it a danger to

         17  civilians?

         18                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: My understanding

         19  behind it is within about five minutes it will dry

         20  on the window, but the stuff that runs down, the

         21  content that runs down will pool thicker, so that

         22  could stay wet a longer period of time, maybe 20

         23  minutes, a half hour, if it pools into like the

         24  windowsill of the subway. But the think coating that

         25  actually remains on the window, I believe it's about
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          2  five minutes or so.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: So the stuff

          4  that remains pooled or even on the window for five

          5  minutes, does that present a danger to a subway

          6  rider?

          7                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: Yes, absolutely.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I'm learning

          9  about etching acid as we go along too. I was reading

         10  on the Internet about these Bingo containers. I just

         11  assume that meant, that was some sort of new

         12  underground word I hadn't heard about, but it's an

         13  actual Bingo container that they keep this stuff in.

         14                 You mentioned the shoe polish, that

         15  container, how do they carry this stuff when they

         16  use it illegally?

         17                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: My understanding is

         18  the most common way is the shoe polish. It's liquid,

         19  it has the sponge on top, it's the best way to do

         20  it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Do they take

         22  the shoe polish out or do they mix it with the shoe

         23  polish?

         24                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: They mix it with the

         25  shoe polish. The shoe polish will actually give it
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          2  some color, because the acid etch, depending on what

          3  it is, it's clear. It will etch in but then you

          4  really can't see it. They want the color so you can

          5  see it outside. So, I don't know the exact mixture,

          6  but they probably dump out half of the shoe polish

          7  or a quarter of it and they'll put in the acid etch

          8  cream, the most common one that I'm aware of is a

          9  cream, but it's not that hard of a cream, obviously,

         10  if you mix it with a solution, shake it up enough,

         11  it will become a liquid. And just prime that sponge

         12  and they're ready to go, and they'll use it until it

         13  gets too messy.

         14                 They can fill Sharpee pens, which a

         15  kid going to school, you wouldn't necessarily be

         16  alerted by a Sharpee pen until you investigate it

         17  further.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Which someone

         19  else could then find and use if they were unaware of

         20  the fact that it was etching acid?

         21                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: Absolutely.  The

         22  vehicle in which you use it on, that eventually

         23  breaks down too, due to the acid, but you get enough

         24  time to do what they have to do.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: And these
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          2  Bingo containers are what?

          3                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: I can just go back

          4  to my grandmother. When you recall going to Bingo,

          5  it looks almost like the shoe polish bottle, kind of

          6  the sponge on top, and you turn it over and when

          7  they call the number they can push down, it leaves a

          8  red mark on the paper, they open that up, they'll

          9  take out some of that fluid and they'll add the acid

         10  etch cream and they're good to go.

         11                 As a matter of fact, the gentleman I

         12  mentioned earlier, Smash, when we did a search

         13  warrant he also had Bingo markers, so he used that,

         14  as well as shoe polish.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Because what

         16  I'm getting at is perhaps ways to ban these type of

         17  containers for etching acid. So, how is it normally

         18  legally packaged?

         19                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: The acid etch you

         20  mean?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Yes.

         22                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: Without mentioning

         23  company names, the one I'm most familiar with just

         24  comes in a plastic bottle. I am not apprised of why

         25  that plastic doesn't break down due to the acid. I
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          2  guess maybe it's made of something special, I don't

          3  know. It could come in, I've seen small containers

          4  like this. We actually purchased one one time for

          5  ourselves, to kind of research a little bit. Three

          6  ounce bottle, you can get, like a gallon bottle, you

          7  can get in the tub, depending I guess on the size

          8  and the need of it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: But you can't

         10  use it in that form for graffiti?

         11                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: I don't believe so.

         12  I believe their way of choice, maybe if you took it

         13  out with something and just wiped it on a window or

         14  something, of course it would wreck the window. They

         15  couldn't write with it. They couldn't use it as a

         16  tool to make their tag, and obviously that's what

         17  they're all about.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I'm thinking

         19  of ways of perhaps doing what we did with

         20  spraypaint, the blocked containers, and of making it

         21  illegal to transfer into any other sort of

         22  container, but just things for down the road that we

         23  can work together on.

         24                 Okay, Ms. Petito, you mentioned you

         25  don't have statistics on specific etching acid
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          2  arrests. So, Captain Selover, let me ask you, the

          3  graffiti you see on subways, or anyone can answer,

          4  on subway, how much of it percentage-wise would you

          5  say is done by the etching acid, and how much is

          6  done by other methods?

          7                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: It's hard to give a

          8  percentage, but I will say that as long as you're a

          9  rider of the subway cars or even the buses,

         10  drive-past bus shelters, it's apparent virtually

         11  everywhere. At some point a car will have that or

         12  acid etch or something on the windows. The same

         13  thing with the bus shelters. Percenetage-wise, I

         14  don't know how you would take somebody with an acid

         15  etch who can do ten windows very quickly, as opposed

         16  to someone who can spray paint, it takes time to

         17  spray paint a whole piece on the side of a train.

         18  You know, I can't really tie that up. It's very big

         19  though. It's very big.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay. I know

         21  you don't have, because I've spoken to your

         22  representatives before this, but I believe nobody

         23  there has a monetary figure that this would cost the

         24  City, either through bus stops or through the trains

         25  or repairing, the private industry repairing doors
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          2  or anything like that; would anyone have any

          3  monetary estimates?

          4                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: If a representative

          5  from the MTA, New York City Transit, they could give

          6  you who works at the glass shop. All I could tell

          7  you is, again, in the case of Smash, he was arrested

          8  for about 40 windows. Now, they're different sized

          9  windows so there's a different cost, but I believe

         10  the MTA was looking to get $7,500 in cost of, if you

         11  will, parts and labor of replacing these windows

         12  from him, so 40 windows equals about $7,500.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: There are

         14  press reports with MTA representatives being quoted

         15  anywhere from 10 to 25 million when it comes to

         16  damage to these things, and I know that the bus

         17  stops are, apparently they're licensed out to

         18  private companies or responsible to the upkeep, so

         19  you wouldn't have those figures either.

         20                 But, of course, the money you get

         21  from these companies when you license them out is

         22  going to take that into consideration, so it's money

         23  the City is losing if those companies have to pay,

         24  even though it does come from advertising. They

         25  clearly do, that is money that should be going to
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          2  the City at some point. If the advertising is

          3  covering the cost of repairing the glass, then

          4  that's again money that should be going to the City,

          5  either in the fee for licensing that out or if we

          6  didn't license it out and kept it ourselves and did

          7  the advertising.

          8                 But again, it's a cost which I'm

          9  going to work with the Administration on getting

         10  figures on. I know you don't have it today. I've

         11  asked for it.

         12                 Running through the testimony, your

         13  first concern is the definition. Are you prepared to

         14  give us a better definition, or do you have any in

         15  mind? Is that something we can work on down the road

         16  of etching acid, because you see to, number one,

         17  have a problem with the definition --

         18                 MR. EILER: We certainly want to

         19  consider it and see if we can narrow the definition

         20  down. I mean, that's currently in the law, the

         21  broadest possible definition of what constitutes an

         22  etching acid that is being used, so obviously we

         23  want to make it broad enough to cover every

         24  possibility.

         25                 But on covering it, it also becomes
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          2  something that this substance is used for all these

          3  other purposes, and also --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I wouldn't

          5  quite consider it untold multitudes, but you're

          6  right.

          7                 MR. EILER: But there is a huge number

          8  of people, a fairly large number of people that use

          9  etching acids. And I was stunned by this photo

         10  etching that I never had any clue about, and it's

         11  etching acid is used in photo stencil reproductions

         12  and all kinds of other stuff. So, this is a

         13  substance that's widely used for a lot of purposes,

         14  and they would all be caught up in this legislation.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Rather than,

         16  just thinking off the top of our heads, rather than

         17  creating a special license for etching acid, what if

         18  we exempted all these professions that use etching

         19  acid and say that anyone who is in one of these

         20  professions would be able to buy it, and anyone who

         21  isn't must make a special request to your agency for

         22  a temporary license for something like that. Would

         23  something like that be workable?

         24                 MR. EILER: I would have to take a

         25  look at how the exception would work and whether the
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          2  exception was easily identifiable, you know, the

          3  people and how you exempt them and how you know that

          4  they are exempt and so forth. So, I mean, yes, it's

          5  something worth considering. The whole point is, we

          6  want to make this more targeted and there are lots

          7  of different ways of making it more targeted, and

          8  we'd be willing to explore all of them.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: You're right,

         10  we do want to make it more targeted but we don't

         11  want it to lose too much effectiveness. I understand

         12  that the Police Department is not going to be that

         13  much help because they don't go around seeing that

         14  often this substance and making the arrest based

         15  solely on that, as we've heard, and as we know from

         16  experience, the idea of this law is to stop it from

         17  getting out into the hands of these people before

         18  the police have to do anything about it.

         19                 So, we don't want to make it so

         20  narrow that we're not achieving our goal, but I

         21  understand your concerns.

         22                 The businesses, as you mention here,

         23  automotive; are licenses involved in these

         24  businesses already? Automotive industry, sign and

         25  plaque industry, jewelry industry?
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          2                 MR. EILER: Not most of them. Most of

          3  them are not licensed for anything that we do. I

          4  mean, they're not engaged in the kind of retail

          5  activity and so forth. Certainly none of them are

          6  licensed by us at this point.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay. And

          8  then glaziers also are not licensed in New York,

          9  correct? They are licensed elsewhere, in Connecticut

         10  and things like that, but not here.

         11                 MR. EILER: Well, we have laser

         12  pointers, but that's a very special object. I don't

         13  think that's covered in anything that you're talking

         14  about here.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay, number

         16  two, you go into the costly requirements, which is

         17  interesting, I had forgotten about the $75 fee for a

         18  background check, which may be prohibited to someone

         19  who is legitimately using artwork, so potentially we

         20  could eliminate the background check from that, if

         21  it was found to be too burdensome.

         22                 Number three, you say licensing is

         23  normally used as a way of testing the qualifications

         24  of licensees to guard the public from incompetent

         25  practitioners, which is basically what we're doing
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          2  here. We're making sure that people who use it are

          3  using it professionally, and/or in a piece of

          4  artwork, as opposed to running down the streets and

          5  endangering the public.

          6                 And the only thing I can maybe

          7  analogize it to is fireworks. You know, they're

          8  dangerous to the public as is etching acid, and

          9  they're regulated.

         10                 Can we do something similar along the

         11  lines of fireworks?

         12                 MR. EILER: Well, fireworks are

         13  basically prohibited. You know, you're not supposed

         14  to be able to sell them in New York. In Pennsylvania

         15  you can get them any place, so they're not

         16  prohibited there at all. So, it's a question, you

         17  know -- the problem here, if the product is

         18  prohibited, then relatively simple enforcement,

         19  relatively because it's identifiable. We know you're

         20  supposed to sell it or not sell it.

         21                 Where it becomes more difficult where

         22  it's lawful for certain purposes, but you don't want

         23  it used for illegal purposes, that's where it's

         24  difficult to make the distinguishing lines as to who

         25  is on which side of the line. And that's where we
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          2  have to get creative in terms of how we can laser in

          3  on what we want to get and without catching a whole

          4  bunch of people who are just bystanders.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: You're right.

          6  Fireworks are illegal here and unless you have, I

          7  don't know if it's a license or whoever does these

          8  fireworks displays have to do the license, to do the

          9  fireworks shows that are authorized and they're

         10  legal elsewhere. So, perhaps somewhere in between,

         11  why is etching acid, and there should be some way to

         12  regulate this.

         13                 And I appreciate your ideas. I notice

         14  that you talked about higher jail sentences. You

         15  don't have to sell me on that one, but the problem

         16  is right now graffiti is punishable by up to a year

         17  in jail, and even any higher than that would be a

         18  pretty hard sell, even with me I guess, and it

         19  wouldn't be anything we could do here on the City

         20  level. It would be the State level because it would

         21  be a felony if it was over a year in jail. So, I

         22  don't think we're going to be going to higher

         23  penalties.

         24                 And your record keeping requirement

         25  sounds very workable, we'll have to look at that one
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          2  also. Perhaps not only who is buying it but their

          3  purpose and whether they do have any license that

          4  wouldn't qualify them, not that it's necessary, but

          5  it might be information that we're taking now.

          6                 One moment, please.

          7                 Based on what I said, or what maybe

          8  you didn't testify to, is there any other -- are

          9  there any other recommendations that any of you

         10  could make in going forward with this and trying to

         11  narrow it to something that you think would be

         12  workable?

         13                 MR. EILER: Well, aside from looking

         14  at some kind of registry or something along those

         15  lines, I don't know what other kind of registration

         16  licensing permitting system might work.

         17                 But it's worth exploring in terms of

         18  getting to the nub of the problem. I mean, if we

         19  can't increase the penalties then I mean, I don't

         20  know whether the fines can be, or whatever.

         21                 But basically, yes, we are willing to

         22  explore any options and alternatives for doing this.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: We should

         24  make those Bingo containers illegal.

         25                 MR. EILER: (Laughter) What are you
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          2  going to do with the Bingo players?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: They might be

          4  the ones doing the graffiti actually. That might be

          5  a connection that we haven't discovered yet.

          6                 All right, Mr. Chair, thank you

          7  again.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          9                 Council Member Koppell, do you have

         10  questions? No? Okay.

         11                 It's interesting that this etching

         12  acid is so portable but yet so abusive so that it

         13  costs so much money to repair, something that can be

         14  carried around that portably.

         15                 Have you had any incidents, Captain,

         16  of people being burned, or Commissioner, either the

         17  artists or the police on the scene, having to get

         18  cleaned up from burns?

         19                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: To my knowledge, no.

         20  No, sir. We've come in contact with it several

         21  times, and we've never had an issue. And as far as

         22  in general conversation with TA representatives on

         23  occasion, their concern was that somebody will get

         24  hurt by it, but I'm not a spokesman, but as far as I

         25  know, no, no one has gotten hurt as far as I know.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Fortunately no

          3  one has gotten hurt today. Okay.

          4                 Now, as we try to figure out a way to

          5  end this proliferation of this issue, clearly we

          6  need to try to figure out some type of way to come

          7  up with a monitoring mechanism to at least ensure

          8  that the people that are selling the product, are

          9  selling it, as Andrew said, to responsible parties,

         10  and selling it to -- and developing a database I

         11  think would be a key and important piece that we do

         12  put together a database that would assist you in

         13  your enforcement to quickly try to track down a

         14  component of people that are using it legally. It's

         15  just, as Council Member Vallone is trying to close

         16  the circle of illegal usage for people continuing to

         17  wind up costing the City millions of dollars with

         18  these graffiti tactics, it's important that we try

         19  to work together on these particular issues.

         20                 I don't have any other questions for

         21  the panel. Is there anything else that you wanted to

         22  add this morning? Do you want to give me an update

         23  on paid detail or anything?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: No,

         25  sir. Sorry.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right. Okay,

          3  I want to thank you for coming this morning. I had

          4  to at least mention paid detail once while you were

          5  here, Commissioner, just to remind you. I haven't

          6  forgotten.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Mr.

          8  Chairman, I would never expect you to forget that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Captain, what is

         10  the Selover? We have a street. You pronounce it

         11  Selover?

         12                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: Sea-Lowver.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Sea-Lover.

         14                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: Selover Road and

         15  113?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right. You worked

         17  at 113?

         18                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: Yes, I was assigned

         19  to Queens way back when.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, great.

         21                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: Many years ago.

         22                 I believe he was a Dutch farmer or

         23  land owner. I read something on it years ago.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         25                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: I don't own the
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          2  land.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right. But your

          4  background is Dutch?

          5                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: I'm a civil servant,

          6  sir.

          7                 My father was a civil servant, too.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right. But it's

          9  just interesting that I made that connection. Thank

         10  you for your service, and thank you for all the work

         11  that you're doing to increasing your numbers while

         12  you're losing personnel. It's definitely not easy.

         13                 CAPTAIN SELOVER: Thank you, sir.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Congratulations.

         15  Thank you, Commissioner. Thank you, Andrew.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Thank

         17  you.

         18                 MR. EILER: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We have a letter

         20  from the National Council to Prevent Delinquency.

         21  They were asked to testify at the hearing. They did

         22  send us a letter saying they would not be able to

         23  attend. They're looking to try to acquire other

         24  information applicable that they think can be

         25  helpful to Council Member Vallone, and they will
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          2  pass it on to him as soon as they come up with a

          3  couple of ideas that they have worked on.

          4                 I'm not going to read the whole

          5  letter, but clearly they understand it as a problem

          6  and they are willing to be helpful.

          7                 We do have with us Ms. Donna Moran

          8  from Pratt Institute. Thank you. If you want to come

          9  to the mic.

         10                 Thank you for coming, Ms. Moran. You

         11  can speak into the mic. whenever you're ready.

         12                 MS. MORAN: Okay. Hello. I'm Donna

         13  Moran. I'm the Chair of the BFA and MFA Fine Arts

         14  Department at Pratt Institute.

         15                 There are 260 undergraduate majors

         16  who study printmaking, painting, drawing, sculpture,

         17  ceramics, and jewelry, and 170 graduate students who

         18  study printmaking, painting and drawing, sculpture,

         19  new forms of photography. Each semester we seat over

         20  2,400 students from across the Institute in classes

         21  offered by the Fine Arts Department.

         22                 I'm a University Professor and a

         23  printmaker since 1969. I have been Chair of the Fine

         24  Arts Department since 2001. I am here to ask for an

         25  exemption for educational institutions.
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          2                 Pratt Institute should be exempt from

          3  the proposed licensure of etching acids,

          4  Introduction No. 380. Pratt Institute is cognizant

          5  of its responsibilities and has a long record of

          6  compliance in the purchasing, storage and the use of

          7  etching acids and other hazardous materials.

          8                 The Printmaking Department of Pratt

          9  Institute, the largest of the art schools in the New

         10  York City metropolitan area services 288 students

         11  for academic year in classes that use materials

         12  defined as etching acids. The legislation would make

         13  it impossible for anyone under the age of 21 to

         14  enroll in a printmaking course and will thus deny

         15  students they opportunity to fully pursue an

         16  education in the fine arts.

         17                 Moreover, to license individual

         18  students would be untenable, causing economic

         19  difficulty that would lead to the closing of the

         20  Printmaking Department.

         21                 The Printmaking Department stores all

         22  acids and chemicals in a locked room under the

         23  supervision of a full-time technical employee who

         24  mixes and provides the necessary materials for each

         25  class at each meeting and disposes of them after
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          2  they are used.

          3                 The Printmaking Department's use of

          4  etching acids is limited to, and I couldn't find a

          5  definition in your bill to describe what you meant

          6  by etching acids. We use Ferric acid, 20 gallons per

          7  year. Ferric acid is purchased at a strength of 42

          8  baume and is used at a strength of 21 baume. After

          9  use, the ferric acid sits in closed containers until

         10  the copper residue settles to the bottom of the

         11  container. The liquid is then safe for disposal and

         12  the copper sludge is sent to Pratt's EPA collection

         13  site. Approximately two pounds of copper is

         14  collected each semester.

         15                 Nitric acid. Three five pint bottles

         16  a year. Nitric acid is used in various strengths.

         17  One part nitric to eight, 12 or 20 parts water. All

         18  used nitric acid is stored in sealed containers and

         19  considered hazardous waste. Approximately one

         20  gallon, once a month, is sent to the hazardous waste

         21  collection point.

         22                 The other acids we use are

         23  hydrochloric phosphoric and acedic acids.

         24  Printmaking uses approximately one gallon of each

         25  per year. These acids are used in mild
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          2  concentrations with water in lithography processes.

          3  They are easily disposed of under EPA regulations.

          4                 There are no incidences past or

          5  present of etching acids used, stored or disposed of

          6  inappropriately at Pratt Institute. It is necessary

          7  to consider the consequences and hardship that the

          8  enactment of this legislation would cause to

          9  students. An exemption from this legislation is both

         10  appropriate and necessary for Pratt Institute and

         11  other educational institutions.

         12                 And I must say that I am very

         13  sympathetic to the problems caused not only on the

         14  subway system, but also we have a lot of issues that

         15  we deal with with graffiti artists in the

         16  neighborhood in Brooklyn, which we have zero

         17  tolerance for on our campus, but we have never had a

         18  problem with the use of etching acids, and I can't

         19  imagine how we can have every single student or

         20  person or faculty member apply for a license to get

         21  this. And the predominant student that we have is

         22  under 21 years old.

         23                 So, that's my statement.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: What are you

         25  using it for exactly?
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          2                 MS. MORAN: In printmaking process you

          3  use these acids to etch into metal plates, and the

          4  metal plates then have ink that are pushed into it

          5  and the roughened surface gathers ink and that's how

          6  an image -- etching and lithography images have been

          7  around for, I don't know, hundreds of years, as long

          8  as art history really is going on, and it's a very

          9  central educational tool in the fine arts.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And you have a

         11  department that focuses on lithography? I didn't

         12  realize Pratt was that big of a fine arts school.

         13                 MS. MORAN: Yes, it is.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         15                 MS. MORAN: It is the largest

         16  printmaking department. Perhaps, we service more

         17  students perhaps than almost any other institution

         18  in the United States, not just the City of New York.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         20                 MS. MORAN: We seat about between 400

         21  and 450 students every semester in all methods of

         22  printmaking alone. Not everybody takes etching or

         23  lithography. They take silk screen or relief

         24  printing as well.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And you have that
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          2  there on campus as well?

          3                 MS. MORAN: Oh, yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All the machinery

          5  and everything?

          6                 MS. MORAN: Everything.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Ms. Moran, I need

          8  to take a moment and shift gears so we can vote on

          9  this resolution. So, if you will just bear with me

         10  for a minute while we have our quorum that we're

         11  going to have, since Chairman Gennaro has to run

         12  back across the street.

         13                 We have a preconsidered resolution by

         14  myself, Speaker Quinn, Council Member Garodnick,

         15  Gioia and Vallone. The title is:  A resolution

         16  endorsing the Speaker's decision to have the City

         17  Council intervene in the rate-making proceeding

         18  before the State Public Service Commission filed by

         19  Consolidated Edison in which it's seeking a rate

         20  increase.

         21                 Today the Committee on Consumer

         22  Affairs will consider preconsidered resolution to

         23  have the Council -- endorsing the Speaker's decision

         24  to have the Council intervene in the rate-making

         25  proceeding before the State Public Service
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          2  Commission filed by Consolidated Edison in which it

          3  is seeking a rate increase.

          4                 The State Public Service Commission

          5  is the body that regulates and approves rates for

          6  electric, gas and other public utilities in the

          7  State.  On May 7th of this year, Consolidated Edison

          8  filed for a cumulative rate increase of 18.5 percent

          9  over three years, and a corresponding increase in

         10  customer rates.

         11                 This preconsidered resolution

         12  endorses the Council's Decision to have -- the

         13  Speaker's decision to have the Council intervene in

         14  a rate-making proceeding before the State PSC filed

         15  by Con Ed.

         16                 Intervening in the rate-making

         17  proceeding would entitle the Council to notice of

         18  hearings, receive copies of documents served and to

         19  make appearances in the proceedings.

         20                 With that I'm going to ask the

         21  members if they have any additional statements. And

         22  in simple English, this would allow us to protest

         23  our Con Edison's desire to have an 18.5 percent

         24  increase over three years. Clearly, we know the

         25  problems with Con Ed and their transparency, their
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          2  lack of clarity to the working public they're

          3  serving, and we're asking to give us more autonomy,

          4  a little more leverage to go directly PSC and make a

          5  case against this rate increase.

          6                 With that, any questions from the

          7  members?

          8                 With that, I'd like to call for a

          9  vote.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK MARTIN: Council Member

         11  Comrie.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK MARTIN: Gennaro.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK MARTIN: Koppell.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK MARTIN: By a vote of

         18  three in the affirmative, zero in the negative and

         19  no abstentions, the item is adopted.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         21  Vallone can vote on this. It's the resolution. I

         22  mean, if he's on the resolution.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK MARTIN: He's not on the

         24  Committee.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: He's not on the
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          2  Committee.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I would still

          4  like to vote on that one. I'm not on the Committee.

          5  You forgot.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right. Okay.

          7                 Well, if we can note that Council

          8  Member Vallone is extremely desirous to vote on

          9  this.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I signed

         11  that, so just cross my name off.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Mr. Chair, if

         14  I could interrupt for one second, I have to get to

         15  that hearing also, I just want to say that we did,

         16  when we wrote our graffiti bill, exempt educational

         17  institutions.

         18                 MS. MORAN: I understand.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: And I would

         20  have no problem doing that on this also. You present

         21  some very good arguments. So, thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes, I think we

         23  will definitely work to exempt it. I just didn't

         24  know everything Pratt did, so I was just being

         25  nosey.
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          2                 MS. MORAN: No, no, it's okay. I know

          3  that it had been exempted, educational institutions

          4  had been exempted before, but it didn't seem to

          5  appear in this legislation.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.

          7                 You know, I drive down DeKalb a lot

          8  of mornings because the BQE is just a horrendous

          9  mess.

         10                 MS. MORAN: Mm-hmm.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And, you know,

         12  once we fix congestion in the City, not just create

         13  a congestion pricing scheme, hopefully we can have

         14  better traffic flow along the highways, and make

         15  sure that we have more highway availability and not

         16  just charging people to come in Midtown Manhattan.

         17  But I don't mean to rant to you.

         18                 But anyhow, I drive down DeKalb a lot

         19  of mornings and I notice there are two art stores

         20  right to the west of the campus. I didn't realize

         21  that was a major part of the campus activities.

         22                 MS. MORAN: There is a very large new

         23  Pratt store on Myrtle.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right, I saw

         25  that.
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          2                 MS. MORAN: An older store. Yes, it's

          3  quite a vibrant arts area. Most of our graduate

          4  students and undergraduates don't leave the area.

          5                 In fact, everyone from New Jersey

          6  seems to have moved there recently.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Oh, okay.

          8                 MS. MORAN: So, yes, it is very

          9  vibrant. And if you're ever stuck there, I'd be

         10  happy to show you the Printmaking Department and the

         11  rest of the school.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'll do that one

         13  day, when they call me and tell me the meeting is

         14  delayed, I may stop.

         15                 MS. MORAN: Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you for

         17  coming.

         18                 MS. MORAN: You're welcome. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We also have Mr.

         20  Terrence Picone from Armour Products. You can come

         21  and present your testimony, sir.

         22                 MR. PICONE: Good morning, members of

         23  the Council my name is Terrence Picone. I'm one of

         24  the owners of Armour Products. Armour Products is a

         25  distributor to the craft and hobby industry of
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          2  Armour Etch, which is a glass etching cream. We have

          3  been in business over 30 years. The majority of our

          4  customers are craft and hobbyists. They use it for

          5  etched glass, stained glass. We sell stencils that

          6  go along with it. We also use the photo process that

          7  was mentioned previously.

          8                 I just would like to read a statement

          9  that would help, be useful to the Committee during

         10  deliberations.

         11                 We're here to provide information to

         12  the Committee that might be useful to you in your

         13  deliberations about licensing the purchase of all

         14  etchings in New York City. In the same way that

         15  spraypaint is used by regular law abiding people to

         16  repair or create items for their homes and give us

         17  gifts. Etchings are used by regular law abiding

         18  people to create items for their home and give as

         19  gifts. Arts and crafts projects like etched mirrors,

         20  glassware and other decorative objects.

         21                 I recommend that New York City treat

         22  etchings in the very same way it currently treats

         23  other products that can be misused, like

         24  spraypaints, inhalers, put an age restriction on the

         25  product and require merchants to enforce this
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          2  restriction. Require that merchants lock up the

          3  etchants with spray paints in the craft and hobby

          4  stores where the products are sold, so that

          5  merchants can ensure that the products are purchased

          6  only by responsible adults.

          7                 Imposing a licensing requirement on

          8  purchasers of etchants is overly onerous. At least

          9  95 percent of our sales are made by consumers. These

         10  consumers aren't interested first in having to

         11  obtain a license to do arts and crafts any more than

         12  they would be interested in first having to obtain a

         13  license to use spraypaint. Licensing would prevent

         14  regular, law-abiding consumers from accessing these

         15  products.

         16                 The regular consumer is not causing

         17  the graffiti and other acts of vandalism you are

         18  ultimately working hard to reduce. Yet these

         19  consumers would be the ones who would be cut off

         20  from their craft and hobby supplies. The five

         21  percent of all our sales that are made by

         22  businesses, or in the effect actually in commercial

         23  use, may not be effective, but even in those

         24  instances, businesses may resist having to obtain

         25  yet one more license to do their business in New
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          2  York City.

          3                 Placing an age restriction on the

          4  product will allow the responsible craft and

          5  hobbyist to still have a supply of product while

          6  making it more difficult for those who would abuse

          7  its use to gain access to the product. A product

          8  that has been used safely and responsibly for over

          9  30 years should not be treated differently than

         10  other similar products that can be abused in the

         11  wrong hands.

         12                 One of the things that, you know, I

         13  wanted to point out is that some of the technical

         14  information that was supplied about the product

         15  itself, the etchants, there is a hydrochloric

         16  chemical that Council Member Vallone talked about is

         17  clear, and we went to the baume and everything, that

         18  is hydrochloric acid. That's not an etching cream.

         19  That is a very, very devastating product, it is only

         20  available on an industry basis. It's clear, it's

         21  odorless. As a matter of fact, most industries are

         22  stopping using it because it is so horrendous. And

         23  whoever is getting this, they're not getting it from

         24  a craft and hobby store, they're not getting it from

         25  a legitimate source, they're getting it from
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          2  probably a commercial chemical company. And it

          3  etches clear, and it is a devastating product. In

          4  all our years we've never had a liability problem

          5  with the product. I even brought a sample just to

          6  give you an idea of what the creative use of the

          7  product is.

          8                 I'd just like to show you. There it's

          9  applied to the stencil.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. So, is it

         11  the wording, or is it the entire decorative piece?

         12                 MR. PICONE: Anything that is frosted

         13  on the glass would be the etching. It would have the

         14  stencil, then it would have the heart on it, and

         15  then it would have the word "wedding." And that's

         16  the majority of people who buy stencils with the

         17  etching cream. They do the wedding glasses. They

         18  come out with things that amazes us over a 30-year

         19  period, to see what they've actually done with the

         20  product. They do large panels, large glasses.

         21                 You've seen a lot of restaurants,

         22  where if you go into the restaurant you'll see the

         23  actual etching on the back panels of bars, on the

         24  windows in the front, the side lights, the glass in

         25  the front. They also do wine bottles for gifts. They
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          2  do all sorts of things with the product itself.

          3                 We're all for some type of

          4  legislation to help fix the graffiti problem, but my

          5  concern is, is the crafter, hobbyist, the person of

          6  the artistic part, are they going to be harmed by

          7  it?

          8                 Another thing also is that the

          9  product we sell is packaged in a plastic jar, and it

         10  does not, the plastic jar does not breakdown. Any

         11  etching acid or any etchant like that will not break

         12  down in plastic. It will break down in metal, it

         13  will break down in glass, but it will not break

         14  through, you know, a plastic pan or anything. That's

         15  why they use the dobbers and those Bingo

         16  applicators, because they are plastic and they will

         17  hold it and it will not break through that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. All right.

         19  All right, thank you, Mr. Picone, for coming in and

         20  letting us know that information. I think it's

         21  helpful to how we try to move forward. Clearly the

         22  idea of, you know, treating it the same way we treat

         23  other products that could be misused is a good idea

         24  and a good suggestion, and hopefully we could get

         25  the Administration to quickly agree with that.
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          2                 I will speak to Councilman Vallone

          3  about making that happen, at least as a clear way of

          4  ensuring that, you know, the responsible people are

          5  handling it at the onset responsibly. Clearly we

          6  want to try to close, as I said earlier, close the

          7  circle on people that want to do negative things

          8  with that product, but clearly the product has been

          9  around, has been used in positive ways, much more

         10  than it is used in negative ways, and we have to be

         11  mindful of that as well.

         12                 MR. PICONE: Well, we'll be more than

         13  happy to help you in any way we can with the amount

         14  of people.

         15                 We've seen a lot over the Internet

         16  lately, and on e-bay and things of that nature where

         17  they can get the product, and they're actually

         18  blatantly describing the product for you, so we've

         19  contacted e-bay and we've tried to get them to cut

         20  them off. So, the Captain that was here before, we

         21  helped him track down a few of the people that we

         22  kept records of. So, you know, we'll do anything in

         23  our power to make sure it gets in the right hands.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         25                 Thank you for coming over to the City
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          2  today.

          3                 MR. PICONE: Okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: With that, there

          5  is no one else here, I will call the hearing closed,

          6  and thank everyone for participating today. I thank

          7  Councilman Vallone's staff and everyone on our staff

          8  in the City for coming in. Damien, you know, Damien,

          9  I've never said your last name. How do you pronounce

         10  that?

         11                 MR. BUTVICK: Butvick.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Butvick, okay.

         13  And Thomas Ferrugia, my Legislative Counsel. This is

         14  only Damien's second time being in this Committee, I

         15  just realized I never said his last name. I'll never

         16  say it again.

         17                 Have a good morning.

         18                 MR. PICONE: Thank you so much for

         19  taking the time.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you for

         21  coming.

         22                 Are we recording still?

         23                 We're going to hold the vote open for

         24  another 15 minutes, because Council Member Liu was

         25  stuck in traffic.
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          2                 Billy will be across the street for

          3  him to sign the sheet and vote.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 11:37 a.m.)
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          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 24th day of September 2007.
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